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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(In thousands, except share and per share data)
March 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
 (Unaudited)

CURRENT ASSETS   
Cash and cash equivalents $ 642,191 $ 785,308 
Accounts receivable, net 358,500 468,329 
Prepaid expenses 55,979 49,509 
Other current assets 31,048 31,614 

Total Current Assets 1,087,718 1,334,760 
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  

Structures, net 650,804 688,947 
Other property, plant and equipment, net 189,488 199,877 

INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL   
Indefinite-lived permits 707,578 826,528 
Other intangible assets, net 289,443 292,751 
Goodwill 701,050 709,637 

OTHER ASSETS
Operating lease right-of-use assets 1,621,693 1,632,664 
Other assets 69,069 70,109 

Total Assets $ 5,316,843 $ 5,755,273 

CURRENT LIABILITIES   
Accounts payable $ 96,632 $ 101,159 
Accrued expenses 398,048 444,492 
Current operating lease liabilities 347,716 343,793 
Accrued interest 59,325 115,053 
Deferred revenue 86,306 64,313 
Current portion of long-term debt 21,353 21,396 

Total Current Liabilities 1,009,380 1,090,206 
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long-term debt 5,604,322 5,550,890 
Non-current operating lease liabilities 1,309,173 1,341,759 
Deferred tax liabilities, net 329,901 356,269 
Other long-term liabilities 194,693 198,751 

Total Liabilities 8,447,469 8,537,875 

Commitments and Contingencies (Note 5)

STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
Noncontrolling interest 9,633 10,855 
Common stock, par value $ 0.01 per share: 2,350,000,000 shares authorized (469,223,507 shares issued as of March 31, 2021; 468,703,164 shares issued as

of December 31, 2020) 4,692 4,687 
Additional paid-in capital 3,506,938 3,502,991 
Accumulated deficit (6,271,887) (5,939,534)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (376,912) (358,520)
Treasury stock (1,364,443 shares held as of March 31, 2021; 1,360,252 shares held as of December 31, 2020) (3,090) (3,081)

     Total Stockholders' Deficit (3,130,626) (2,782,602)
     Total Liabilities and Stockholders' Deficit $ 5,316,843 $ 5,755,273 

 
See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF LOSS

(UNAUDITED)
 

(In thousands, except per share data) Three Months Ended
 March 31,
 2021 2020
Revenue $ 370,908 $ 550,809 
Operating expenses:

Direct operating expenses (excludes depreciation and amortization) 283,290 350,269 
Selling, general and administrative expenses (excludes depreciation and amortization) 97,570 123,704 
Corporate expenses (excludes depreciation and amortization) 34,042 36,338 
Depreciation and amortization 61,852 75,753 
Impairment charges 118,950 123,137 
Other operating expense, net 117 6,021 

Operating loss (224,913) (164,413)
Interest expense, net (92,693) (90,142)
Loss on extinguishment of debt (51,101) — 
Other income (expense), net 6,554 (18,889)
Loss before income taxes (362,153) (273,444)
Income tax benefit (expense) 28,697 (15,779)
Consolidated net loss (333,456) (289,223)

Less amount attributable to noncontrolling interest (1,103) (11,732)
Net loss attributable to the Company $ (332,353) $ (277,491)

Net loss attributable to the Company per share of common stock — basic and diluted $ (0.71) $ (0.60)

 
See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS

(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands) Three Months Ended
March 31,

2021 2020
Net loss attributable to the Company $ (332,353) $ (277,491)
Other comprehensive loss:

Foreign currency translation adjustments (19,346) (16,421)
Reclassification adjustments 944 — 

Other comprehensive loss (18,402) (16,421)
Comprehensive loss (350,755) (293,912)

Less amount attributable to noncontrolling interest (10) (2,251)
Comprehensive loss attributable to the Company $ (350,745) $ (291,661)

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT

(UNAUDITED)
(In thousands, except share data)

Three Months Ended March 31, 2021
Controlling Interest

TotalCommon Shares Issued
Non-controlling

Interest
Common

Stock
Additional Paid-in

Capital
Accumulated

Deficit
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Loss Treasury Stock
Balances at December 31, 2020 468,703,164 $ 10,855 $ 4,687 $ 3,502,991 $ (5,939,534) $ (358,520) $ (3,081) $ (2,782,602)
Net loss (1,103) — — (332,353) — — (333,456)
Exercise of stock options and release of stock

awards 520,343 — 5 (4) — — (9) (8)
Share-based compensation — — 3,951 — — — 3,951 
Payments to noncontrolling interests (109) — — — — — (109)
Other comprehensive loss (10) — — — (18,392) — (18,402)

Balances at March 31, 2021 469,223,507 $ 9,633 $ 4,692 $ 3,506,938 $ (6,271,887) $ (376,912) $ (3,090) $ (3,130,626)

(In thousands, except share data)
Three Months Ended March 31, 2020

Controlling Interest

TotalCommon Shares Issued
Non-controlling

Interest
Common

Stock
Additional Paid-in

Capital
Accumulated

Deficit
Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Loss Treasury Stock
Balances at December 31, 2019 466,744,939 $ 152,814 $ 4,667 $ 3,489,593 $ (5,349,611) $ (349,552) $ (2,617) $ (2,054,706)
Adoption of ASU 2016-13, Credit Losses — — — (7,181) — — (7,181)
Net loss (11,732) — — (277,491) — — (289,223)
Exercise of stock options and release of stock

awards 169,203 — 2 38 — — 286 326 
Share-based compensation 42 — 3,735 — — — 3,777 
Payments to noncontrolling interests (118) — — — — — (118)
Other comprehensive loss (2,251) — — — (14,170) — (16,421)
Other — — 3 — — — 3 

Balances at March 31, 2020 466,914,142 $ 138,755 $ 4,669 $ 3,493,369 $ (5,634,283) $ (363,722) $ (2,331) $ (2,363,543)

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(UNAUDITED)

(In thousands) Three Months Ended March 31,
2021 2020

Cash flows from operating activities:   
Consolidated net loss $ (333,456) $ (289,223)
Reconciling items:

Depreciation, amortization and impairment charges 180,802 198,890 
Non-cash operating lease expense 88,499 100,702 
Loss on extinguishment of debt 51,101 — 
Foreign exchange transaction loss (gain) (5,431) 18,755 
Deferred taxes (26,634) 17,743 
Other reconciling items, net 4,860 13,147 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:

Decrease in accounts receivable 114,998 75,232 
Increase in prepaid expenses and other operating assets (10,193) (14,262)
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses (40,098) (36,703)
Decrease in operating lease liabilities (106,282) (115,137)
Decrease in accrued interest (55,661) (56,881)
Increase in deferred revenue 11,573 9,574 
Increase (decrease) in other operating liabilities 1,581 (20,458)

Net cash used for operating activities (124,341) (98,621)
Cash flows from investing activities:   

Purchases of property, plant and equipment and concession rights (17,918) (35,894)
Other investing activities, net 273 (50)

Net cash used for investing activities (17,645) (35,944)
Cash flows from financing activities:   

Draws on credit facilities — 150,000 
Proceeds from long-term debt 1,000,000 — 
Payments on long-term debt (989,014) (5,070)
Debt issuance costs (11,789) (534)
Other financing activities, net (117) 204 

Net cash provided by (used for) financing activities (920) 144,600 
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (880) (8,691)

Net increase (decrease) in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash (143,786) 1,344 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period 795,061 417,075 
Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period $ 651,275 $ 418,419 

Supplemental disclosures:   
Cash paid for interest $ 145,207 $ 145,938 
Cash paid for income taxes, net of refunds $ 1,103 $ 8,257 

See Condensed Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONDENSED NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(UNAUDITED)

NOTE 1 – BASIS OF PRESENTATION

Preparation of Interim Financial Statements

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries, as well as entities for which the Company has a
controlling financial interest or is the primary beneficiary. Intercompany transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. All references in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-
Q to the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries.

The accompanying consolidated financial statements were prepared by the Company pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”)
and, in the opinion of management, include all normal and recurring adjustments necessary to present fairly the results of the interim periods shown. Certain information and
footnote disclosures normally included in financial statements prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”) have been condensed or
omitted pursuant to such SEC rules and regulations. Management believes that the disclosures made are adequate to make the information presented not misleading. Due to
seasonality and other factors, the results for the interim periods may not be indicative of results for the full year. The financial statements contained herein should be read in
conjunction with the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto included in the Company’s 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K, filed on February 25, 2021.

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2021 presentation.

Recent Developments

COVID-19

In March 2020, the World Health Organization categorized coronavirus disease 2019 (“COVID-19”) as a pandemic. The duration and severity of the effects of the pandemic
remain uncertain. The Company has taken and continues to take actions, including cost reduction initiatives such as contract renegotiations, application for governmental aid and
reductions in headcount, to strengthen its financial position and support the continuity of its platform and operations.

• The Company continues to complete contract negotiations with landlords and municipalities to better align fixed site lease expenses with reductions in revenue. Where
applicable, the Company has applied the April 2020 supplemental Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) staff guidance regarding accounting for rent
concessions resulting from COVID-19. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company recognized reductions of rent expense on lease and non-lease
contracts due to negotiated rent abatements of $22.7 million. Negotiated deferrals of rent payments did not result in a reduction of rent expense.

• During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company received European governmental support and wage subsidies in response to COVID-19 of $4.7 million,
which have been recorded as reductions in compensation and rent costs.

• The Company continues to execute upon its restructuring plan to reduce headcount in Europe. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company incurred
restructuring and other costs pursuant to this plan of $1.7 million in its Europe segment and $0.9 million related to Corporate operations. Refer to Note 9 to the
Company’s Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements for further details.

Disposition

On April 28, 2020, the Company sold its 50.91% stake in Clear Media Limited (“Clear Media”), a former indirect, non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company based in
China.

8
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Use of Estimates

The Company’s consolidated financial statements presented herein reflect estimates and assumptions made by management that affect the reported amounts of assets and
liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements and reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the periods
presented. Such estimates and assumptions affect, among other things, the Company’s goodwill, long-lived assets and indefinite-lived intangible assets; operating lease right-of-
use assets and operating lease liabilities; assessment of the annual effective tax rate; valuation of deferred income taxes and income tax contingencies; defined-benefit plan
obligations; the allowance for credit losses; assessment of lease and non-lease contract expenses; and measurement of compensation cost for bonus and other compensation
plans. The Company’s assessment of conditions and events, considered in the aggregate, indicates that the Company will be able to meet its obligations as they become due
within one year after the date of these financial statements. There continues to be uncertainty in estimating the expected economic and operational impacts relative to COVID-
19 as the situation continues to evolve. The estimates and assumptions used in these financial statements may change in future periods as the expected impacts from COVID-19
are revised, resulting in further potential impacts to the Company’s financial statements.

New Accounting Pronouncements

New Accounting Pronouncements Recently Adopted

The Company adopted the guidance under Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) 2019-12, Simplifying the Accounting for Income Taxes, as of January 1, 2021 on a prospective
basis. This update, which simplifies the accounting for income taxes by removing certain existing exceptions to the general principles in Topic 740, does not have a material
impact on the Company’s consolidated financial statements or disclosures.

New Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted

In March 2020, the FASB issued ASU 2020-04, Facilitation of the Effects of Reference Rate Reform on Financial Reporting, in order to ease the potential burden of accounting
for reference rate reform initiatives, an ongoing effort amongst regulators, standard setters, financial institutions and other market participants to replace the London Interbank
Offered Rate (“LIBOR”) with alternative reference rates. The update provides temporary optional expedients and exceptions for applying GAAP contract modification
accounting to contracts and other transactions affected by reference rate reform if certain criteria are met and may be applied through December 31, 2022. The Company is
currently assessing whether it will use these optional expedients and exceptions but does not currently expect adoption of this guidance to have a material impact on the
Company’s consolidated financial statements or disclosures. In March 2021, the ICE Benchmark Administration, LIBOR’s administrator, announced that it will cease
publication of certain LIBOR rates after December 31, 2021 and that USD LIBOR rates that do not cease as of this date will continue to be published through June 30, 2023.
The Company is evaluating its debt agreements and commercial contracts that may utilize LIBOR as the reference rate and will continue to monitor and assess regulatory
developments during the transition period.

NOTE 2 – SEGMENT DATA

The Company has two reportable segments, which it believes best reflect how the Company is currently managed – Americas and Europe. The Americas segment consists of
operations primarily in the United States (“U.S.”), and the Europe segment consists of operations in Europe and Singapore. The Company’s remaining operating segments do
not meet the quantitative thresholds to qualify as reportable segments and are disclosed as “Other.” Each segment provides out-of-home advertising services in its respective
geographic region using various digital and traditional display types, consisting primarily of billboards, street furniture displays and transit displays.

Segment Adjusted EBITDA is the profitability metric reported to the Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) for purposes of making decisions about allocation
of resources to, and assessing performance of, each reportable segment. Segment Adjusted EBITDA is calculated as revenue less direct operating expenses and selling, general
and administrative expenses, excluding restructuring and other costs, which are defined as costs associated with cost-saving initiatives such as severance, consulting and
termination costs and other special costs. Segment information for total assets is not presented as this information is not used by the Company’s CODM in measuring segment
performance or allocating resources between segments.
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The following table presents the Company’s reportable segment results for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020
Revenue

Americas $ 211,884 $ 295,787 
Europe 149,524 211,690 
Other 9,500 43,332 
Total $ 370,908 $ 550,809 

Capital Expenditures
Americas $ 5,725 $ 15,817 
Europe 8,050 10,095 
Other 1,313 6,342 
Corporate 2,830 3,640 
Total $ 17,918 $ 35,894 

Segment Adjusted EBITDA
Americas $ 64,220 $ 107,958 
Europe (67,629) (14,111)
Other (3,825) (15,187)
Total $ (7,234) $ 78,660 

Reconciliation of Segment Adjusted EBITDA to Consolidated Net Loss Before Income Taxes
Segment Adjusted EBITDA $ (7,234) $ 78,660 
Less reconciling items:
Corporate expenses 34,042 36,338 
Depreciation and amortization 61,852 75,753 
Impairment charges 118,950 123,137 
Restructuring and other costs 2,718 1,824 
Other operating expense, net 117 6,021 
Interest expense, net 92,693 90,142 
Other charges 44,547 18,889 

Consolidated net loss before income taxes $ (362,153) $ (273,444)

Other includes the Company’s operations in Latin America and, for periods prior to the disposition of the Company’s stake in Clear Media on April 28, 2020, China.

Corporate expenses include expenses related to infrastructure and support, including information technology, human resources, legal, finance and administrative functions of each of the
Company’s reportable segments, as well as overall executive, administrative and support functions. Share-based payments and certain restructuring and other costs are recorded in
corporate expenses.

The restructuring and other costs line item in this reconciliation excludes those restructuring and other costs related to corporate functions, which are included with the Corporate expenses
line item.

Other charges includes Loss on extinguishment of debt and Other income (expense), net.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(1)

(2)

(3)

(4)
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NOTE 3 – REVENUE

The Company generates revenue primarily from the sale of advertising space on printed and digital out-of-home advertising displays. Certain of these revenue transactions are
considered leases for accounting purposes as the contracts convey to customers the right to control the use of the Company’s advertising displays for a period of time. The
Company accounts for revenue from leases in accordance with the lease accounting guidance under Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 842; all remaining
revenue transactions are accounted for as revenue from contracts with customers under ASC Topic 606.

Disaggregation of Revenue

The following table shows revenue from contracts with customers, revenue from leases and total revenue, disaggregated by segment, for the three months ended March 31, 2021
and 2020:

(In thousands)

Revenue from
contracts with

customers Revenue from leases Total Revenue
Three Months Ended March 31, 2021

Americas $ 94,068 $ 117,816 $ 211,884 
Europe 131,678 17,846 149,524 
Other 7,630 1,870 9,500 

Total $ 233,376 $ 137,532 $ 370,908 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2020
Americas $ 163,278 $ 132,509 $ 295,787 
Europe 187,190 24,500 211,690 
Other 39,276 4,056 43,332 

Total $ 389,744 $ 161,065 $ 550,809 

Americas total revenue includes revenue from transit displays of $21.4 million and $55.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, including revenue from
airport displays of $19.5 million and $51.9 million, respectively.

Other includes the Company’s businesses in Latin America and, for periods prior to the disposition of the Company’s stake in Clear Media on April 28, 2020, China. Total revenue for the
Company’s Latin America business was $18.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2020.

Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The following tables show the Company’s beginning and ending accounts receivable and deferred revenue balances from contracts with customers:

Three Months Ended March 31,
(In thousands) 2021 2020
Accounts receivable, net of allowance, from contracts with customers:
  Beginning balance $ 349,799 $ 581,555 
  Ending balance $ 243,689 $ 375,509 

Deferred revenue from contracts with customers:
  Beginning balance $ 37,712 $ 52,589 
  Ending balance $ 46,773 $ 57,022 

During the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, the Company recognized $28.0 million and $40.8 million of revenue that was included in the deferred
revenue from contracts with customers balance at the beginning of the respective year.

The Company’s contracts with customers generally have terms of one year or less; however, as of March 31, 2021, the Company expects to recognize $113.9 million of revenue
in future periods for remaining performance obligations from current contracts with customers that have an original expected duration greater than one year, with the majority
of this amount to be recognized over the next five years.

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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NOTE 4 – LONG-TERM DEBT
Long-term debt outstanding as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020 consisted of the following:

(In thousands)
March 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Term Loan Facility $ 1,970,000 $ 1,975,000 
Revolving Credit Facility 130,000 130,000 
Receivables-Based Credit Facility — — 
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings 5.125% Senior Secured Notes Due 2027 1,250,000 1,250,000 
Clear Channel International B.V. 6.625% Senior Secured Notes Due 2025 375,000 375,000 
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings 7.75% Senior Notes Due 2028 1,000,000 — 
Clear Channel Worldwide Holdings 9.25% Senior Notes Due 2024 961,525 1,901,525 
Other debt 5,136 6,763 
Original issue discount (7,972) (8,296)
Long-term debt fees (58,014) (57,706)
Total debt $ 5,625,675 $ 5,572,286 

Less: Current portion 21,353 21,396 
Total long-term debt $ 5,604,322 $ 5,550,890 

In March 2021, the Company paid $5.0 million of the outstanding principal on the term loan facility (“Term Loan Facility”) in accordance with the terms of the senior secured credit
agreement ("Senior Secured Credit Agreement") governing the senior secured credit facilities, which consist of the Term Loan Facility and the revolving credit facility (“Revolving Credit
Facility”).

On February 17, 2021, the Company issued $1.0 billion in aggregate principal amount of 7.75% Senior Notes due 2028. On March 4, 2021, the Company used the net proceeds from this
issuance to cause Clear Channel Worldwide Holdings, Inc., a subsidiary of the Company, to redeem $ 940.0 million aggregate principal amount of its 9.25% Senior Notes due 2024
(“CCWH Senior Notes”) at a redemption price equal to 104.625% of the principal amount thereof, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the redemption date. As a result of this partial
redemption, the Company recognized a loss on debt extinguishment of $51.1 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021.

The aggregate market value of the Company’s debt based on market prices for which quotes were available was approximately $5.7 billion and $5.6 billion as of March 31, 2021
and December 31, 2020, respectively. Under the fair value hierarchy established by ASC 820-10-35, the market value of the Company’s debt is classified as Level 1.

CCOH 7.75% Senior Notes Due 2028

On February 17, 2021, the Company completed the sale of $1.0 billion in aggregate principal amount of 7.75% Senior Notes due 2028 (the “CCOH Senior Notes”) in a private
placement to qualified institutional buyers under Rule 144A under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”), and to persons outside the U.S. pursuant to
Regulation S under the Securities Act.

On the same date, the Company entered into an indenture, dated as of February 17, 2021 (the “Indenture”), by and among the Company, the subsidiaries of the Company acting
as guarantors party thereto (collectively, the “Guarantors”), and U.S. Bank National Association, as trustee.

The CCOH Senior Notes mature on April 15, 2028 and bear interest at a rate of 7.75% per annum. Interest on the CCOH Senior Notes is payable to the holders thereof semi-
annually on April 15 and October 15 of each year, beginning on October 15, 2021.

The CCOH Senior Notes are guaranteed on a senior unsecured basis by certain of the Company’s wholly-owned existing and future domestic subsidiaries. The CCOH Senior
Notes (i) rank pari passu in right of payment with all existing and future senior indebtedness of the Company; (ii) are senior in right of payment to all of the future subordinated
indebtedness of the Company and the Guarantors; (iii) are effectively subordinated to all of the Company’s existing and future indebtedness secured by a lien, to the extent of
the value of such collateral; and (iv) are structurally subordinated to any existing and future obligations of any existing or future subsidiaries of the Company that do not
guarantee the CCOH Senior Notes, including all of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries.

(1)

(2)

(2)

(1)

(2)
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The Company may redeem all or a portion of the CCOH Senior Notes beginning on April 15, 2024 at the redemption prices set forth in the Indenture. Prior to April 15, 2024,
the Company may redeem all or a portion of the CCOH Senior Notes at a redemption price equal to 100% of the principal amount of the CCOH Senior Notes plus the “make-
whole” premium described in the Indenture. The Company may redeem up to 40% of the aggregate principal amount of the CCOH Senior Notes at any time prior to April 15,
2024 using the net proceeds from certain equity offerings at 107.75% of the principal amount of the CCOH Senior Notes.

The Indenture contains covenants that limit the Company’s ability and the ability of its restricted subsidiaries to, among other things: (i) incur or guarantee additional debt or
issue certain preferred stock; (ii) redeem, purchase or retire subordinated debt; (iii) make certain investments; (iv) create restrictions on the payment of dividends or other
amounts from the Company’s restricted subsidiaries that are not Guarantors; (v) enter into certain transactions with affiliates; (vi) merge or consolidate with another person, or
sell or otherwise dispose of all or substantially all of the Company’s assets; (vii) sell certain assets, including capital stock of the Company’s subsidiaries; (viii) designate the
Company’s subsidiaries as unrestricted subsidiaries; (ix) pay dividends, redeem or repurchase capital stock or make other restricted payments; and (x) incur certain liens.

Letters of Credit, Surety Bonds and Guarantees

As of March 31, 2021, the Company had $43.2 million of letters of credit outstanding under its Revolving Credit Facility, resulting in $1.8 million of remaining excess
availability. Additionally, the Company had $ 60.6 million of letters of credit outstanding under its receivables-based credit facility, which had a borrowing base less than its
borrowing limit of $125.0 million, limiting excess availability to $24.8 million. Access to availability under these credit facilities is limited by the covenants relating to
incurrence of secured indebtedness in the indenture governing the CCWH Senior Notes. Additionally, as of March 31, 2021, the Company had $ 94.4 million and $32.0 million
of surety bonds and bank guarantees outstanding, respectively, a portion of which was supported by $8.7 million of cash collateral. These letters of credit, surety bonds and
bank guarantees relate to various operational matters, including insurance, bid, concession and performance bonds, as well as other items.

Amendment to Senior Secured Credit Facilities

In June 2020, the Company entered into an amendment to the Senior Secured Credit Agreement, thereby suspending the springing financial covenant through June 30, 2021 and
delaying the scheduled financial covenant step-down until March 31, 2022. In May 2021, the Company entered into a second amendment to the Senior Secured Credit
Agreement to, among other things, extend the suspended springing financial covenant through December 31, 2021 and further delay the scheduled financial covenant step-
down until September 30, 2022. Under the Senior Secured Credit Agreement, as amended, the Company is required to maintain minimum cash on hand and availability under
the Receivables-Based Credit Facility and Revolving Credit Facility of $150 million for all reporting periods through March 31, 2022.

NOTE 5 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Legal Proceedings

The Company and its subsidiaries are involved in certain legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business and, as required, have accrued an estimate of the probable
costs for the resolution of those claims for which the occurrence of loss is probable and the amount can be reasonably estimated. These estimates have been developed in
consultation with counsel and are based upon an analysis of potential results, assuming a combination of litigation and settlement strategies. It is possible, however, that future
results of operations for any particular period could be materially affected by changes in the Company’s assumptions or the effectiveness of its strategies related to these
proceedings. Additionally, due to the inherent uncertainty of litigation, there can be no assurance that the resolution of any particular claim or proceeding would not have a
material adverse effect on the Company’s financial condition or results of operations.

Although the Company is involved in a variety of legal proceedings in the ordinary course of business, a large portion of the Company’s litigation arises in the following
contexts: commercial disputes, employment and benefits related claims, land use and zoning, governmental fines, intellectual property claims and tax disputes.

China Investigation

Two former employees of Clear Media, a former indirect, non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company whose ordinary shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange,
have been convicted in China of certain crimes, including the crime of misappropriation of funds, and sentenced to imprisonment. The Company is not aware of any litigation,
claim or assessment pending against the Company in relation to this investigation. Based on information known to date, the Company believes any contingent liabilities arising
from potential misconduct that has been or may be identified by the investigation in China are not material to the Company’s consolidated financial statements.
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The Company advised both the SEC and the United States Department of Justice ("DOJ") of the investigation at Clear Media and is cooperating to provide documents,
interviews and information to the agencies. Subsequent to the announcement that the Company was considering a strategic review of its stake in Clear Media, in March 2020,
Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings received a subpoena from the staff of the SEC and a Grand Jury subpoena from the United States Attorney's Office for the Eastern District of
New York, both in connection with the previously disclosed investigations. On April 28, 2020, the Company tendered the shares representing its 50.91% stake in Clear Media to
Ever Harmonic Global Limited ("Ever Harmonic"), a special-purpose vehicle wholly owned by a consortium of investors which includes the chief executive officer and an
executive director of Clear Media, and on May 14, 2020, the Company received the final proceeds of the sale. In connection with the sale of its shares in Clear Media, the
Company entered into an Investigation and Litigation Support Agreement with Clear Media and Ever Harmonic that requires Clear Media, if requested by the SEC and/or DOJ,
to use reasonable efforts to timely provide relevant factual information to the SEC and/or DOJ, among other obligations.

The Clear Media investigation could implicate the books and records, internal controls and anti-bribery provisions of the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, which statute and
regulations provide for potential monetary penalties as well as criminal and civil sanctions. It is possible that monetary penalties and other sanctions could be assessed on the
Company in connection with this matter. The nature and amount of any monetary penalty or other sanctions cannot reasonably be estimated at this time and could be
qualitatively or quantitatively material to the Company.

In connection with this investigation, the SEC has also requested information regarding the Company’s historical oversight of its business in Italy and the misstatements and
related forensic investigation, as described below. The Company is cooperating to provide documents and information responsive to the SEC inquiries and is voluntarily sharing
the documents and information with the DOJ.

Italy Investigation

During the three months ended June 30, 2018, the Company identified misstatements associated with VAT obligations in its business in Italy, which resulted in an
understatement of its VAT obligation of $ 16.9 million as of December 31, 2017. Upon identification of these misstatements, the Company undertook certain procedures,
including a forensic investigation. In addition, the Company voluntarily disclosed the matter and findings to the Italian tax authorities in order to commence a discussion on the
appropriate calculation of the VAT position.

In February 2021, the Company negotiated a final settlement with the Italian tax authorities to repay a substantial portion of the VAT previously applied as a credit in relation to
the transactions under investigation, amounting to, at current foreign exchange rates, approximately $21.7 million, including penalties and interest. The Company had
previously made payments of $8.1 million and applied VAT recoverable of $ 1.7 million against the outstanding balance. During the first quarter of 2021, the Company paid an
additional $3.5 million, with the majority of the residual amount to be paid in quarterly installments over the next four years.

NOTE 6 – INCOME TAXES

Income Tax Benefit (Expense)

The Company’s income tax benefit (expense) for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 consisted of the following components:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020
Current tax benefit $ 2,063 $ 1,964 
Deferred tax benefit (expense) 26,634 (17,743)
Income tax benefit (expense) $ 28,697 $ (15,779)

The effective tax rates for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 were 7.9% and (5.8)%, respectively.

The effective tax rate in the first quarter of 2021 was primarily impacted by the valuation allowance recorded against current period deferred tax assets resulting from losses and
interest expense carryforwards in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions due to uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to realize those assets in future periods.
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The effective tax rate in the first quarter of 2020 was primarily impacted by the valuation allowance recorded against current period deferred tax assets resulting from losses and
interest expense carryforwards in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions due to uncertainty regarding the Company's ability to realize those assets in future periods.
Additionally, as a result of entering into the agreement to irrevocably tender to sell its 50.91% stake in Clear Media, the Company recorded deferred tax expense and an
associated deferred tax liability of $44.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2020. As of March 31, 2020, the Company’s financial reporting basis in its
investment in Clear Media exceeded its tax basis; the deferred tax liability recorded during the period represented the income tax obligation that was expected to arise in the
U.S. and China upon the reversal of the Company’s outside basis difference in Clear Media through a sale.

NOTE 7 – PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The Company’s property, plant and equipment consisted of the following classes of assets as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

(In thousands)
March 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Structures $ 2,354,220 $ 2,378,124 
Furniture and other equipment 247,411 244,913 
Land, buildings and improvements 149,463 149,992 
Construction in progress 35,839 42,366 
 2,786,933 2,815,395 
Less: Accumulated depreciation 1,946,641 1,926,571 

Property, plant and equipment, net $ 840,292 $ 888,824 

NOTE 8 – INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

Intangible Assets

The following table presents the gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for each major class of intangible assets as of March 31, 2021 and December 31, 2020:

(In thousands) March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

 
Gross Carrying

Amount
Accumulated
Amortization

Gross Carrying
Amount

Accumulated
Amortization

Indefinite-lived permits $ 707,578 $ — $ 826,528 $ — 
Transit, street furniture and other outdoor
   contractual rights 453,305 (394,722) 458,316 (398,186)
Permanent easements 163,258 — 162,900 — 
Trademarks 83,569 (16,312) 83,569 (14,229)
Other 2,030 (1,685) 2,072 (1,691)

Total intangible assets $ 1,409,740 $ (412,719) $ 1,533,385 $ (414,106)

The Company performs its annual impairment test for indefinite-lived permits as of July 1 of each year, and more frequently as events or changes in circumstances warrant. The
Company tested its indefinite-lived permits for impairment during both the first quarters of 2021 and 2020 due to indicators of impairment, specifically, due to an increase in the
discount rate during 2021 and due to expected negative financial statement impacts from COVID-19 during 2020. This testing in both quarters indicated impairment of
indefinite-lived permits, resulting in charges of $119.0 million and $123.1 million recorded during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

15



Table of Contents

Goodwill

The following table presents changes in the goodwill balance for the Company’s segments during the three months ended March 31, 2021:

(In thousands) Americas Europe Other Consolidated
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 507,819 $ 201,818 $ — $ 709,637 

Foreign currency — (8,587) — (8,587)
Balance as of March 31, 2021 $ 507,819 $ 193,231 $ — $ 701,050 

The balance at December 31, 2020 is net of cumulative impairments of $2.6 billion, $191.4 million and $90.4 million for Americas, Europe and Other, respectively.

NOTE 9 – COST-SAVINGS INITIATIVES

During 2020, the Company committed to restructuring plans to reduce headcount in the Americas and Europe segments as well as in Latin America, primarily in response to the
impact of COVID-19. The Americas plan and the Latin America portion of the international plan were completed in 2020.

In Europe, the Company is continuing to make relevant announcements to employees on a country by country basis and is continuing consultations with the works council,
employee representatives, unions and other relevant organizations regarding the intended reduction in force and related cost reduction and restructuring actions. In April 2021,
the Company revised its international restructuring plan to reflect delays in implementing the Europe portion of the plan and additional headcount reductions in Europe. The
Company expects this revised plan to be substantially complete by the end of the first quarter of 2023 and estimates that total charges for the Europe portion of the international
restructuring plan, which includes charges already incurred, will be in a range of approximately $51 million to $56 million. As of March 31, 2021, the Company had incurred a
total amount of $10.0 million in costs in its Europe segment in connection with the Europe portion of the restructuring plan, including $1.7 million during the three months
ended March 31, 2021. Substantially all charges related to this plan were or are expected to be severance benefits and related costs.

The following table presents changes in the liability balances related to these restructuring plans during the three months ended March 31, 2021:

(In thousands) Americas Europe Other Corporate Total
Balance as of December 31, 2020 $ 2,533 $ 2,455 $ — $ 818 $ 5,806 

Costs incurred and charged to Direct operating expenses — 285 — — 285 
Costs incurred and charged to Selling, general and administrative expenses — 1,380 — — 1,380 
Costs incurred and charged to Corporate expenses — — — 901 901 
Costs paid or otherwise settled (1,067) (2,835) — (742) (4,644)

Balance as of March 31, 2021 $ 1,466 $ 1,285 $ — $ 977 $ 3,728 

Costs are categorized as Restructuring and other costs and are therefore excluded from Segment Adjusted EBITDA.

In addition, during the three months ended March 31, 2021, the Company incurred $1.4 million of restructuring costs in Corporate related to termination benefits associated
with a cost-savings initiative outside of the aforementioned restructuring plans, which was substantially completed and paid as of March 31, 2021.

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)

(1)
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NOTE 10 – NET LOSS PER SHARE

The following table presents the computation of net loss per share for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

(In thousands, except per share data) Three Months Ended
March 31,

 2021 2020
Numerator:   

Net loss attributable to the Company – common shares $ (332,353) $ (277,491)
Denominator:   

Weighted average common shares outstanding – basic 465,865 463,465 
Weighted average common shares outstanding – diluted 465,865 463,465 

Net loss attributable to the Company per share of common stock:   
Basic $ (0.71) $ (0.60)
Diluted $ (0.71) $ (0.60)

Outstanding equity awards of 25.9 million and 13.4 million shares for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, were not included in the computation of
diluted earnings per share because to do so would have been anti-dilutive.

NOTE 11 — OTHER INFORMATION

Restricted Cash

The following table provides a reconciliation of cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets to the total of the amounts reported in the
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows:

(In thousands)
March 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance Sheet $ 642,191 $ 785,308 

Restricted cash included in:
  Other current assets 1,170 1,433 
  Other assets 7,914 8,320 

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash in the Statement of Cash Flows $ 651,275 $ 795,061 

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Credit Losses

The following table discloses the components of “Accounts receivable, net,” as reported in the Consolidated Balance Sheets:

(In thousands)
March 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Accounts receivable $ 388,171 $ 500,372 
Less: Allowance for credit losses (29,671) (32,043)

Accounts receivable, net $ 358,500 $ 468,329 

Credit loss expense related to accounts receivable was $(0.7) million and $3.7 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Other Comprehensive Loss

There were no changes in deferred income tax liabilities resulting from adjustments to other comprehensive loss during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020.

17



Table of Contents

ITEM 2.  MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Management’s discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations (“MD&A”) should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial
statements and related notes contained in Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and the Company's 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K. All references in this Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q to the “Company,” “we,” “us” and “our” are to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. and its consolidated subsidiaries, and all references to “CCOH” are
to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. without its consolidated subsidiaries.

The MD&A is organized as follows:

• Overview – Discussion of the nature, key developments and trends of our business in order to provide context for the remainder of the MD&A.

• Results of Operations – Analysis of our financial results of operations at the consolidated and segment levels.

• Liquidity and Capital Resources – Discussion of our cash flows, anticipated cash requirements, sources and uses of capital and liquidity, debt covenants and
guarantor subsidiaries.

• Critical Accounting Estimates – Discussion of accounting estimates that we believe are most important to understanding the assumptions and judgments incorporated
in our consolidated financial statements.

This discussion contains forward-looking statements that are subject to risks and uncertainties, and actual results may differ materially from those contained in any
forward-looking statements. See “Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements” contained at the end of this MD&A.

OVERVIEW

Description of Our Business

Our revenue is derived from selling advertising space on the displays we own or operate in key markets worldwide, consisting primarily of billboards, street furniture
and transit displays. We have two reportable business segments, which we believe reflect how the Company is currently managed: Americas, which consists of operations
primarily in the U.S., and Europe, which consists of operations in Europe and Singapore. Our remaining operating segments, which include China for periods before its sale on
April 28, 2020 and Latin America, do not meet the quantitative thresholds to qualify as reportable segments and are disclosed as “Other.” Each segment provides out-of-home
advertising services in its respective geographic region using various digital and traditional display types.

Macroeconomic Indicators, Seasonality and Recent Developments

Advertising revenue for our business is highly correlated to changes in gross domestic product (“GDP”) as advertising spending has historically trended in line with
GDP, both domestically and internationally. Additionally, our international results are impacted by the economic conditions in the foreign markets in which we have operations
and fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

We typically experience our lowest financial performance in the first quarter of the calendar year, which is generally offset during the remainder of the year as our
business typically experiences its strongest performance in the second and fourth quarters of the calendar year. However, as described below, our financial performance in 2020
and the first quarter of 2021 was severely impacted by COVID-19. The extent to which COVID-19 will impact our results for the remainder of the year will depend on future
developments, which remain uncertain.

COVID-19 Update

As described in our 2020 Annual Report on Form 10-K, COVID-19 has had a significant adverse impact on our results of operations starting in March 2020. Due to
the timing and nature of the geographic spread of COVID-19, the adverse impacts to our results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2020 were primarily limited
to our operations in China and certain markets in Europe that experienced the most concentrated outbreaks during this time. During the remainder of the year, due to the
continued global spread of COVID-19, including throughout the U.S., we experienced significant adverse effects on our results of operations throughout our business, with the
severity of the negative impacts on out-of-home metrics, travel patterns, consumer behavior and economic activity fluctuating based on the evolving nature of COVID-19
developments in each geographic region.
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During the first quarter of 2021, we continued to see revenues remain significantly below historic norms throughout our business:

• In our Americas segment, our airport display revenue was the most significantly impacted. The U.S. experienced a decrease in reported daily COVID-19 cases and
improvement in mobility levels during the first quarter of 2021 as compared to the fourth quarter of 2020.

• In Europe, an increase in reported daily cases and hospitalizations resulted in the reinstatement of mobility restrictions in certain countries which created significant
volatility in our Europe segment booking activity, particularly in France and the United Kingdom (“U.K.”). Additionally, mobility levels remained significantly below
pre-COVID-19 levels.

Both our Americas and Europe segments continue to experience customer advertising buying decisions later in the buying cycle, which can delay bookings and may
cause performance to vary from our current expectations. Latin America bookings continue to be severely constrained.

Since the onset of the pandemic, we have taken various measures to increase our liquidity and preserve and strengthen our financial flexibility, including aggressive
operating cost and capital expenditure savings initiatives, restructuring plans to reduce headcount and other targeted liquidity measures, and we continue to consider other cost
savings initiatives in order to better align our operating expense base with revenues and to provide additional financial flexibility as circumstances warrant. However, the
duration and severity of COVID-19 continue to evolve and remain uncertain. The extent to which COVID-19 will ultimately impact our results will depend on future
developments, and the curtailed customer demand we have experienced and are continuing to experience could materially adversely impact our business, results of operations
and overall financial performance in future periods.

Executive Summary

The key developments in our business during the three months ended March 31, 2021 are summarized below:

• Consolidated revenue decreased 32.7% during the three months ended March 31, 2021 as compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the impact from movements
in foreign exchange rates, consolidated revenue decreased 34.8%. This was primarily driven by COVID-19 and its extensive impact on the global advertising market,
which severely reduced our performance in both Americas and Europe, as well as the sale of our Clear Media business on April 28, 2020.

• In February, we issued $1.0 billion aggregate principal amount of 7.75% Senior Notes due 2028 (the "CCOH Senior Notes"). In March, we used the net proceeds from
this issuance to redeem $940.0 million aggregate principal amount of the 9.25% Senior Notes due 2024 (the “CCWH Senior Notes”) issued by Clear Channel Worldwide
Holdings, Inc. (“CCWH”).

• We recognized reductions of rent expense on lease and non-lease contracts due to negotiated rent abatements of $22.7 million. We also received European governmental
support and wage subsidies in response to COVID-19 of $4.7 million, which have been recorded as reductions in compensation and rent costs.

• We continued to execute upon the Europe portion of our international restructuring plan to reduce headcount and incurred $1.7 million in restructuring costs pursuant to
this plan during the quarter. In April, we revised the Europe portion of this plan to reflect delays in implementation and additional headcount reductions. We expect the
revised plan to be substantially complete by the end of the first quarter of 2023 and estimate that total charges for the Europe portion of the plan, including charges
already incurred of $10.0 million, will be in a range of approximately $51 million to $56 million. Substantially all charges related to this plan were or are expected to be
severance benefits and related costs.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

The discussion of our results of operations is presented on both a consolidated and segment basis.

• Our operating segment profit measure is Segment Adjusted EBITDA, which is calculated as revenue less direct operating expenses and selling, general and
administrative expenses, excluding restructuring and other costs, which are defined as costs associated with cost-saving initiatives such as severance, consulting and
termination costs and other special costs. The material components of Segment Adjusted EBITDA are discussed below on both a consolidated and segment basis.

• Corporate expenses, depreciation and amortization, impairment charges, other operating income and expense, all non-operating income and expenses, and income taxes
are managed on a total company basis and are, therefore, included only in our discussion of consolidated results.
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Revenue and expenses “excluding the impact of movements in foreign exchange rates” in this MD&A are presented because management believes that viewing certain
financial results without the impact of fluctuations in foreign currency rates facilitates period-to-period comparisons of business performance and provides useful information to
investors. Revenue and expenses “excluding the impact of movements in foreign exchange rates” are calculated by converting the current period’s revenue and expenses in local
currency to U.S. dollars using average foreign exchange rates for the comparable period. 

Due to seasonality and uncertainty surrounding COVID-19, as previously described in the "Overview" discussion, the results for the interim period are not indicative of
expected results for the full year.

Consolidated Results of Operations

The comparison of our historical results of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2021 to the three months ended March 31, 2020 is as follows:

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31, %
 2021 2020 Change
Revenue $ 370,908 $ 550,809 (32.7)%
Operating expenses:

Direct operating expenses (excludes depreciation and amortization) 283,290 350,269 (19.1)%
Selling, general and administrative expenses (excludes depreciation and amortization) 97,570 123,704 (21.1)%
Corporate expenses (excludes depreciation and amortization) 34,042 36,338 (6.3)%
Depreciation and amortization 61,852 75,753 (18.4)%
Impairment charges 118,950 123,137 (3.4)%
Other operating expense, net 117 6,021 (98.1)%

Operating loss (224,913) (164,413) (36.8)%
Interest expense, net (92,693) (90,142)  
Loss on extinguishment of debt (51,101) — 
Other income (expense), net 6,554 (18,889)  
Loss before income taxes (362,153) (273,444)  
Income tax benefit (expense) 28,697 (15,779)  
Consolidated net loss (333,456) (289,223)  

Less amount attributable to noncontrolling interest (1,103) (11,732)  
Net loss attributable to the Company $ (332,353) $ (277,491)  

Consolidated Revenue

Consolidated revenue decreased $179.9 million, or 32.7%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the $11.9
million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, consolidated revenue decreased $191.8 million, or 34.8%, primarily due to the significant adverse impacts of COVID-
19 on our business. Also contributing to the decrease in consolidated revenue was the sale of our Clear Media business on April 28, 2020.

Consolidated Direct Operating Expenses

Consolidated direct operating expenses decreased $67.0 million, or 19.1%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020.
Excluding the $13.8 million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, consolidated direct operating expenses decreased $80.8 million, or 23.1%, largely due to lower site
lease expenses throughout our business, mainly driven by lower revenue and renegotiated contracts with landlords and municipalities to better align fixed site lease expenses
with reductions in revenue. We recognized reductions of rent expense on lease and non-lease contracts due to negotiated rent abatements of $22.7 million during the three
months ended March 31, 2021. Additionally, we received European governmental support and wage subsidies totaling $3.5 million during the three months ended March 31,
2021. Also contributing to the decrease in consolidated direct operating expenses was the sale of our Clear Media business.

Restructuring and other costs included within consolidated direct operating expenses were $0.9 million and $0.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021
and 2020, respectively. Included within restructuring and other costs for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were severance costs of $0.3 million related to the restructuring
plan to reduce headcount in our European business.
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Consolidated Selling, General and Administrative (“SG&A”) Expenses

Consolidated SG&A expenses decreased $26.1 million, or 21.1%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the
$3.9 million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, consolidated SG&A expenses decreased $30.0 million, or 24.3%, largely due to lower employee compensation
costs driven by operating cost savings initiatives implemented by the Company in response to COVID-19, lower revenue, and European governmental support and wage
subsidies totaling $1.2 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021. Also contributing to the decrease in consolidated SG&A expenses was the sale of our Clear
Media business.

Restructuring and other costs included within consolidated SG&A expenses were $1.8 million and $1.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and
2020, respectively. Included within restructuring and other costs for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were severance costs of $1.4 million related to the restructuring
plan to reduce headcount in our European business.

Corporate Expenses

Corporate expenses decreased $2.3 million, or 6.3%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the $0.7 million
impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, corporate expenses decreased $3.0 million, or 8.3%. This decrease was primarily driven by lower employee health benefit costs
and lower variable incentive compensation expense resulting from declines in operating performance due to COVID-19.

Restructuring and other costs included within corporate expenses were $4.7 million and $5.2 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. Included within restructuring and other costs for the three months ended March 31, 2021 were severance costs of $0.9 million related to the restructuring plans to
reduce headcount.

Depreciation and Amortization

Depreciation and amortization decreased $13.9 million, or 18.4%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the
$1.6 million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, depreciation and amortization decreased $15.5 million, or 20.5%, primarily driven by the sale of our Clear Media
business, with the remaining decrease due to lower capital expenditures.

Impairment Charges

During the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, we recognized impairment charges of $119.0 million and $123.1 million, respectively, on indefinite-lived
permits in multiple markets of our Americas segment. The impairments during both periods were driven by increases in the discount rate and reductions in projected cash flows
related to the expected negative financial statement impacts from COVID-19.

Interest Expense, Net

Interest expense, net, increased $2.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020, primarily driven by the issuance of
the Clear Channel International B.V. 6.625% Senior Secured Notes due 2025 (the “CCIBV Senior Secured Notes”) in August 2020 and, to a lesser extent, the overlapping
period between the issuance of the CCOH Senior Notes in February 2021 and the partial redemption of the CCWH Senior Notes in March 2021. These increases were partially
offset by lower interest on the Term Loan Facility due to quarterly payments of principal and a favorable change in the interest rate.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we recognized a loss on extinguishment of debt of $51.1 million related to the partial redemption of the CCWH Senior
Notes. We did not extinguish any debt during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

Other Income (Expense), Net

For the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, we recognized other income, net, of $6.6 million and other expense, net, of $18.9 million, respectively,
primarily related to net foreign exchange gains and losses recognized in connection with intercompany notes denominated in foreign currencies.

Income Tax Benefit (Expense)

The effective tax rates for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020 were 7.9% and (5.8)%, respectively.

The effective tax rate in the first quarter of 2021 was primarily impacted by the valuation allowance recorded against current period deferred tax assets resulting from
losses and interest expense carryforwards in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions due to uncertainty regarding the Company’s ability to realize those assets in future periods.
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The effective tax rate in the first quarter of 2020 was primarily impacted by the valuation allowance recorded against current period deferred tax assets resulting from
losses and interest expense carryforwards in the U.S. and certain foreign jurisdictions due to uncertainty regarding the Company's ability to realize those assets in future periods.
Additionally, as a result of entering into the agreement to irrevocably tender to sell its 50.91% stake in Clear Media, the Company recorded deferred tax expense and an
associated deferred tax liability of $44.8 million during the three months ended March 31, 2020.

Americas Results of Operations

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31, %
 2021 2020 Change
Revenue $ 211,884 $ 295,787 (28.4)%
Direct operating expenses 105,831 135,223 (21.7)%
SG&A expenses 42,855 53,329 (19.6)%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA 64,220 107,958 (40.5)%

Includes restructuring and other costs that are excluded from Segment Adjusted EBITDA.

Americas revenue decreased $83.9 million, or 28.4%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Revenue was adversely
affected by COVID-19 during the first quarter of 2021, resulting in decreases in revenue across all our products. The largest decline was in revenue from airport displays, which
decreased 62.4% to $19.5 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021, as compared to $51.9 million during the same period of 2020. Total digital revenue decreased
36.3% to $62.9 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021, as compared to $98.8 million during the same period of 2020. Digital revenue from billboards, street
furniture and spectaculars was $56.3 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021, as compared to $74.2 million during the same period of 2020. Digital revenue from
transit displays, including airport displays, was $6.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021, as compared to $24.6 million during the same period of 2020.
Revenue generated from national sales comprised 36.0% and 37.7% of total revenue for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, while the remainder of
revenue was generated from local sales.

Americas direct operating expenses decreased $29.4 million, or 21.7%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020 primarily
due to lower site lease expenses related to lower revenue and renegotiated contracts with landlords and municipalities. Americas site lease expense, which includes rent expense
on both lease and non-lease contracts, decreased 22.6% to $83.4 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021, as compared to $107.7 million during the same period
of 2020.

Americas SG&A expenses decreased $10.5 million, or 19.6%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020 largely due to
lower employee compensation costs driven by operating cost savings initiatives and lower revenue.

Europe Results of Operations

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31, %
 2021 2020 Change
Revenue $ 149,524 $ 211,690 (29.4)%
Direct operating expenses 169,482 173,596 (2.4)%
SG&A expenses 49,367 53,131 (7.1)%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA (67,629) (14,111) (379.3)%

Includes restructuring and other costs that are excluded from Segment Adjusted EBITDA.

Europe revenue decreased $62.2 million, or 29.4%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the $12.4 million
impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, Europe revenue decreased $74.6 million, or 35.2%, with the largest revenue reductions occurring in France, the U.K, Sweden
and Spain. Revenue was adversely affected by COVID-19 in each country in which we operate as mobility restrictions and lockdowns in Europe occurred throughout the first
quarter of 2021, whereas government lockdowns during the comparable period of 2020 did not begin until March. Europe digital revenue decreased $21.6 million, or 33.6%, to
$42.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021 as compared to $64.2 million during the same period of 2020. Excluding the $3.4 million impact of movements in
foreign exchange rates, Europe digital revenue decreased $25.0 million, or 38.9%.

(1)

(1)

(1)
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Europe direct operating expenses decreased $4.1 million, or 2.4%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the
$14.3 million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, Europe direct operating expenses decreased $18.4 million, or 10.6%. Direct operating expenses decreased in most
of the countries in which we operate, with the largest decreases occurring in France, the U.K., Sweden and Spain. The largest driver of these decreases was lower site lease
expense driven by lower revenue and renegotiated contracts with landlords and municipalities. Europe site lease expense, which includes rent expense on both lease and non-
lease contracts, decreased 1.6% to $101.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021, as compared to $103.2 million during the same period of 2020. Excluding the
$8.8 million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, Europe site lease expense decreased $10.4 million, or 10.0%. Lower production, maintenance and installation
expenses driven by lower revenue and the receipt of governmental support and wage subsidies also contributed to the decrease in direct operating expenses.

Europe SG&A expenses decreased $3.8 million, or 7.1%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the $4.2
million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, Europe SG&A expenses decreased $8.0 million, or 14.9%. SG&A expenses decreased in most of the countries in which
we operate, with the largest decreases occurring in France, the U.K. and Sweden. These decreases are largely due to lower employee compensation expense related to lower
revenue, operating cost savings initiatives and governmental support and wage subsidies received.

Other Results of Operations

(In thousands)
Three Months Ended

March 31, %
 2021 2020 Change
Revenue $ 9,500 $ 43,332 (78.1)%
Direct operating expenses 7,977 41,450 (80.8)%
SG&A expenses 5,348 17,244 (69.0)%
Segment Adjusted EBITDA (3,825) (15,187) 74.8%

Includes restructuring and other costs that are excluded from Segment Adjusted EBITDA.

Our Latin America business represented ($3.8) million and $1.9 million of Other Segment Adjusted EBITDA for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

Other revenue decreased $33.8 million, or 78.1%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the $0.5 million
impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, Other revenue decreased $33.3 million, or 76.9%, primarily due to the sale of our Clear Media business. Revenue from our
Latin America business was $9.5 million and $18.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. The decrease in Latin America revenue is due to
the adverse impact of COVID-19 on our operations.

Other direct operating expenses decreased $33.5 million, or 80.8%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding
the $0.5 million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, Other direct operating expenses decreased $33.0 million, or 79.7%, primarily due to the sale of our Clear
Media business. Direct operating expenses from our Latin America business were $8.0 million and $10.9 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020,
respectively. The decrease in Latin America direct expenses was due to lower site lease expense related to lower revenue and lower employee compensation costs driven by
operating cost savings initiatives.

Other SG&A expenses decreased $11.9 million, or 69.0%, during the three months ended March 31, 2021 compared to the same period of 2020. Excluding the $0.3
million impact of movements in foreign exchange rates, Other SG&A expenses decreased $11.6 million, or 67.4%, primarily due to the sale of our Clear Media business. SG&A
expenses from our Latin America business were $5.3 million and $5.7 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(1)
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

Cash Flows

The following discussion highlights cash flow activities during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020
Net cash provided by (used for):   

Operating activities $ (124,341) $ (98,621)
Investing activities $ (17,645) $ (35,944)
Financing activities $ (920) $ 144,600 

 Operating Activities

Net cash used for operating activities was $124.3 million and $98.6 million during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively. During the three
months ended March 31, 2021, the net cash outflows from operating activities were largely driven by the adverse impacts of COVID-19 on current period sales and fourth
quarter sales activity resulting in less cash collections during the period. These impacts were only partially offset by reduced expenditures related to operating cost savings
initiatives and working capital optimization particularly around site lease costs.

• During the three months ended March 31, 2021, consolidated net loss of $333.5 million was partially offset by $293.2 million of net add-backs for non-cash reconciling
items, most notably depreciation, amortization and impairment charges, non-cash operating lease expense and loss on extinguishment of debt. Additionally, changes in
working capital balances resulted in $84.1 million of net cash outflows. Cash paid for interest during the three months ended March 31, 2021 was $145.2 million.

• During the three months ended March 31, 2020, consolidated net loss of $289.2 million was offset by $349.2 million of net add-backs for non-cash reconciling items,
most notably depreciation, amortization and impairment charges and non-cash operating lease expense. Changes in working capital balances resulted in $158.6 million of
net cash outflows. Cash paid for interest during the three months ended March 31, 2020 was $145.9 million.

Investing Activities

Net cash used for investing activities reflects our capital expenditures, which primarily relate to construction and sustaining activities for billboards, street furniture and
other out-of-home advertising displays, including digital displays. We had the following capital expenditures during the three months ended March 31, 2021 and 2020:

(In thousands) Three Months Ended March 31,
 2021 2020
Americas $ 5,725 $ 15,817 
Europe 8,050 10,095 
Other 1,313 6,342 
Corporate 2,830 3,640 

Total $ 17,918 $ 35,894 

Capital expenditures have been reduced or deferred as part of our strategy to increase our liquidity and preserve and strengthen our financial flexibility given the adverse financial impacts
and economic uncertainty resulting from COVID-19.
Other capital expenditures during the three months ended March 31, 2020 included the purchase of concession rights in China, prior to the sale of Clear Media.

(1)

(1)
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Financing Activities

Net cash used for financing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2021 primarily reflected a principal payment of $5.0 million on our Term Loan Facility
mostly offset by $4.7 million of net cash proceeds from the issuance of the CCOH Senior Notes, after the payment of debt issuance costs and partial redemption of the CCWH
Senior Notes at 104.625% of the principal amount.

Net cash provided by financing activities during the three months ended March 31, 2020 primarily reflected the cautionary draw of $150.0 million under our Revolving
Credit Facility to enhance liquidity and preserve financial flexibility during the economic downturn resulting from COVID-19, partially offset by a principal payment of $5.0
million on our Term Loan Facility.

Anticipated Cash Requirements

Sources of Capital and Liquidity

Our primary sources of liquidity are cash on hand, cash flow from operations and our credit facilities. Additionally, in February 2021, we issued $1.0 billion aggregate
principal amount of CCOH Senior Notes and used the net proceeds to redeem $940.0 million aggregate principal amount of our CCWH Senior Notes in March 2021.

As of March 31, 2021, we had $642.2 million of cash on our balance sheet, including $293.8 million of cash held outside the U.S. by our foreign subsidiaries. Excess
cash from our foreign operations may be transferred to our operations in the U.S. if needed to fund operations in the U.S., subject to the foreseeable cash needs of our foreign
operations and restrictions in the indenture governing the CCIBV Senior Secured Notes. We could presently repatriate excess cash with minimal U.S. tax consequences, as
calculated for tax law purposes, and dividend distributions from our international subsidiaries may be exempt from U.S. federal income tax.

Additionally, as of March 31, 2021, we had excess availability of $24.8 million under our Receivables-Based Credit Facility and $1.8 million under our Revolving
Credit Facility, subject to limitations in the indenture governing the CCWH Senior Notes.

Uses of Capital and Liquidity

Our primary uses of liquidity are for working capital used to fund the operations of the business, capital expenditures and debt service obligations.

COVID-19's extensive impact on the global advertising market has had a significant negative impact on our results of operations in both our Americas and Europe
segments. In response, we have taken a number of measures to increase our liquidity and preserve and strengthen our financial flexibility, including renegotiating contracts with
landlords and municipalities, reducing compensation costs, obtaining European governmental support and wage subsidies, reducing discretionary expenses, and deferring capital
expenditures and site lease payments.

We continue to execute on the Europe portion of our international restructuring plan to reduce headcount and incurred approximately $1.7 million in related charges
during the three months ended March 31, 2021. In April 2021, we revised the Europe portion of this restructuring plan to reflect delays in implementation and additional
headcount reductions. As revised, we estimate that total charges for the Europe portion of the plan, including $10.0 million of charges already incurred, will be in a range of
approximately $51 million to $56 million, all of which is expected to result in cash expenditures. We expect the revised plan to be substantially complete by the end of the first
quarter of 2023 and to result in pre-tax annual cost savings in excess of $28 million. However, actual final charges pursuant to these plans may be materially different from our
estimates, and there is no guarantee that we will achieve the cost savings that we expect. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we made cash expenditures of $2.8
million related to the Europe portion of our international restructuring plan. In addition, we made cash expenditures of $1.1 million related to our restructuring plan to reduce
headcount in our Americas segment, which was completed during the fourth quarter of 2020, and $0.7 million related to costs incurred in conjunction with these plans related to
Corporate operations. Refer to Note 9 to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for further
information on our restructuring plans.
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During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we spent $145.2 million of cash to pay interest on our debt. We anticipate having approximately $215.8 million of
cash interest payment obligations during the remainder of 2021 and $334.0 million of cash interest payment obligations in 2022, assuming we do not refinance or incur
additional debt. Additionally, during the three months ended March 31, 2021, we made a $5.0 million principal payment on the Term Loan Facility and expect to make
additional principal payments of $15.0 million on the Term Loan Facility during the remainder of 2021. Our next material debt maturity is in 2024 when the remaining balance
of $961.5 million of CCWH Senior Notes and the outstanding balance under the Revolving Credit Facility are due; however, at our option, we may redeem a portion of our
outstanding debt prior to maturity in accordance with the terms of our debt agreements. Refer to Note 4 to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 1
of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for additional details on our debt outstanding as of March 31, 2021.

Trends and Uncertainties

We believe that our cash on hand and additional availability under our credit facilities, combined with cash flows from operations and our continued savings
initiatives, will enable us to meet our working capital, capital expenditure, debt service, restructuring and other funding requirements for at least the next 12 months. However,
our anticipated results are subject to significant uncertainty and may be affected by events beyond our control, including prevailing economic, financial and industry conditions.
Our ability to meet our funding requirements depends on the impacts from these uncertainties, including the impacts related to COVID-19, our future operating performance,
our cash flow from operations, and our ability to manage our liquidity and obtain supplemental liquidity, if necessary. Additional factors may emerge that could cause our
expectations to change. If we are unable to generate sufficient cash through our operations or obtain sources of supplemental liquidity, we could face substantial liquidity
problems, which could have a material adverse effect on our financial condition and on our ability to meet our obligations. We may take further cost-cutting measures beyond
those discussed above to generate short-term liquidity in the event of an unanticipated need for cash. In addition, we regularly consider, and enter into discussions with our
lenders related to, potential financing alternatives, which may include supplemental liquidity through issuances of secured or unsecured debt or other capital-raising
transactions.

Our significant interest payment obligations reduce our financial flexibility, make us more vulnerable to changes in operating performance and economic downturns
generally, reduce our liquidity over time and could negatively affect our ability to obtain additional financing in the future. In the future, we may need to obtain additional
financing from banks or other lenders, through public offerings or private placements of debt or equity, through strategic relationships or other arrangements, or from a
combination of these sources. There can be no assurance that financing alternatives will be available in sufficient amounts or on terms acceptable to us in the future due to
market conditions, our financial condition, our liquidity constraints, our lack of history operating as a company independent from iHeartCommunications or other factors, many
of which are beyond our control, and even if financing alternatives are available to us, we may not find them suitable or at reasonable interest rates. In addition, the terms of our
existing or future debt agreements may restrict us from securing financing on terms that are available to us at that time or at all.

We frequently evaluate strategic opportunities both within and outside our existing lines of business, and we expect from time to time to dispose of certain businesses
and may pursue acquisitions. These dispositions or acquisitions could be material. Specifically, as we continue to focus on operational efficiencies that drive greater margin and
cash flow, we will continue to review and consider opportunities to unlock shareholder value, which may include, among other things, potential asset or operational divestitures
intended to deleverage and increase free cash flow. We have in the past and may from time to time in the future consider strategic transactions, including, among other things,
the sale of one or more of our markets or businesses.

Debt Covenants

The Senior Secured Credit Agreement contains a springing financial covenant, applicable solely to the Revolving Credit Facility if the balance of the Revolving Credit
Facility is greater than $0 and undrawn letters of credit exceed $10 million, that generally requires compliance with a first lien net leverage ratio of 7.60 to 1.00, with a step-
down to 7.10 to 1.00 originally scheduled to commence with the last day of the fiscal quarter ending June 30, 2021. In June 2020, we amended the Senior Secured Credit
Agreement to suspend the springing financial covenant of the Revolving Credit Facility from the third quarter of 2020 through the second quarter of 2021 and delay the timing
of the financial covenant step-down of the first lien net leverage ratio until the first quarter of 2022. In May 2021, we entered into a second amendment to the Senior Secured
Credit Agreement to, among other things, extend the suspended springing financial covenant through the fourth quarter of 2021 and further delay the scheduled financial
covenant step-down until the third quarter of 2022. We are required to maintain minimum liquidity of $150 million, including cash on hand and availability under our
Receivables-Based Credit Facility and Revolving Credit Facility, through delivery of the March 31, 2022 springing financial covenant calculation and agreed not to make
voluntary restricted payments with certain exceptions. We were in compliance with the minimum liquidity covenant as of March 31, 2021.
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In addition, each of our debt agreements includes negative covenants that, subject to significant exceptions, limit our ability and the ability of our restricted
subsidiaries to, among other things, incur or guarantee additional indebtedness or issue certain preferred stock; incur certain liens; engage in mergers, consolidations,
liquidations and dissolutions; sell certain assets, including capital stock of our subsidiaries; pay dividends and distributions or repurchase capital stock; make certain
investments, loans, or advances; redeem, purchase or retire subordinated debt; engage in certain transactions with affiliates; enter into agreements which limit our ability and the
ability of our restricted subsidiaries to incur restrictions on the ability to make distributions; and amend or waive organizational documents. As of March 31, 2021, we were in
compliance with the covenants contained in our financing agreements.

Guarantor Subsidiaries

The Company and certain of the Company’s direct and indirect wholly-owned domestic subsidiaries (the “Obligor Group”) fully and unconditionally guarantee, on a
joint and several basis, the CCWH Senior Notes, which have been registered under the Securities Act. The following summary financial information of the Obligor Group,
which includes the parent guarantor, the issuer and the subsidiary guarantors, is provided in conformity with the SEC’s Regulation S-X Rule 13-01:

(In thousands)
Three months ended March

31, 2021
Year ended December 31,

2020
Results of Operations Data:
Revenue $ 211,072 $ 972,783 
Operating loss (116,872) (92,976)
Net loss attributable to the Obligor Group (228,433) (232,568)

As of As of
(In thousands) March 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Select Asset and Liability Data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 348,427 $ 438,151 
Other current assets 202,052 215,987 
Property, plant and equipment, net 546,211 574,127 
Notes receivable from related-party non-guarantors 283,249 293,095 
Other assets 2,499,690 2,624,745 
Current liabilities (excluding current portion of long-term debt) 346,669 395,426 
Long-term debt (including current portion of long-term debt) 5,256,313 5,202,909 
Notes payable to related-party non-guarantors 115,083 122,295 
Other non-current liabilities 1,289,757 1,329,030 

Investments in non-guarantor subsidiaries have been excluded from the presentation of Other assets. Other assets primarily consists of goodwill, intangible assets and right-of-use assets.

As of March 31, 2021, CCWH had $961.5 million of CCWH Senior Notes outstanding. The CCWH Senior Notes are guaranteed, jointly and severally, irrevocably and
unconditionally, on an unsecured senior basis, by CCOH and certain of CCOH’s existing and future subsidiaries (the “Guarantors”). Not all of CCOH’s subsidiaries guarantee
the CCWH Senior Notes. The subsidiaries of CCOH that do not guarantee the CCWH Senior Notes (the “Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries”) include all foreign subsidiaries of
CCOH, all non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of CCOH, certain domestic subsidiaries and all immaterial subsidiaries. The CCWH Senior Notes are structurally subordinated to all
existing and future obligations of the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries, and the claims of creditors of the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries, including trade creditors, will have priority as
to the assets of these subsidiaries. In the event of a bankruptcy, liquidation or reorganization of any of the Non-Guarantor Subsidiaries, holders of their indebtedness and their
trade and other creditors will generally be entitled to payment of their claims from the assets of those subsidiaries before any assets are made available for distribution to CCWH
and, in turn, to its creditors.

(1)

(1) 
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In addition, as of March 31, 2021, CCWH guaranteed $1,250.0 million principal amount of CCOH Senior Secured Notes, $1.0 billion of CCOH Senior Notes,
$1,970.0 million of borrowings under the Term Loan Facility, $130.0 million of borrowings and $43.2 million of letters of credit under the Revolving Credit Facility and $60.6
million of letters of credit under the Receivables-Based Credit Facility. All of the subsidiaries of CCOH that guarantee the CCWH Senior Notes are guarantors of this
indebtedness. The CCWH Senior Notes and the guarantee of each Guarantor of the CCWH Senior Notes rank pari passu in right of payment with the CCOH Senior Notes and
are effectively subordinated to the CCOH Senior Secured Notes, the Term Loan Facility, the Revolving Credit Facility and the Receivables-Based Credit Facility, to the extent
of the value of the assets securing such indebtedness.

The obligations of each Guarantor under its guarantee are limited as necessary to prevent such guarantee from constituting a fraudulent conveyance under applicable
law. If a guarantee were to be rendered voidable, it could be subordinated by a court to all other indebtedness (including guarantees and other contingent liabilities) of the
Guarantor, and, depending on the amount of such indebtedness, a Guarantor’s liability on its guarantee could be reduced to zero. Each guarantee by a Guarantor provides by its
terms that it shall be automatically and unconditionally released and discharged upon: (1) any sale, exchange or transfer (by merger or otherwise) of the Guarantor in a manner
in compliance with the applicable provisions of the indenture governing the CCWH Senior Notes; (2) the designation of any restricted subsidiary that is a Guarantor as an
unrestricted subsidiary; (3) CCWH exercising legal defeasance or covenant defeasance in accordance with the relevant provisions of the indenture governing the CCWH Senior
Notes; or (4) a Guarantor ceasing to be a restricted subsidiary as a result of a transaction or designation permitted under the indenture governing the CCWH Senior Notes.

CCWH is a holding company with no significant operations or material assets other than the direct and indirect equity interests in its subsidiaries. CCWH derives all of
its operating income from its subsidiaries. As a result, its cash flow and the ability to service its indebtedness, including the CCWH Senior Notes, depends on the performance
of its subsidiaries and the ability of those entities to distribute funds to it.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilities, and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses
during the reporting period. On an ongoing basis, we evaluate our estimates that are based on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. The results of these evaluations form the basis for making judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities and the reported
amount of revenue and expenses that are not readily apparent from other sources. Because future events and their effects cannot be determined with certainty, actual results
could differ from our assumptions and estimates, and such difference could be material. Management believes that certain accounting estimates are the most critical to aid in
fully understanding and evaluating our reported financial results, and they require management’s most difficult, subjective or complex judgments, resulting from the need to
make estimates about the effect of matters that are inherently uncertain. These critical accounting estimates, management's judgments and assumptions, and the effect if actual
results differ from these assumptions are described under Part II, Item 7 “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” in our 2020
Annual Report on Form 10-K.

We perform impairment tests for indefinite-lived intangible assets at least annually, as of July 1 of each year, and more frequently as events or changes in
circumstances warrant. During the first quarter of 2021, we performed an impairment test on our indefinite-lived billboard permits due to changes in our estimates and
assumptions, specifically an increase in the discount rate, as described below.

Impairment Tests

Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets

Indefinite-lived intangible assets, such as our billboard permits, are reviewed at least annually for possible impairment and whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of the asset may not be recoverable using the direct valuation method as prescribed in ASC 805-20-S99. Under the direct
valuation method, the estimated fair value of the indefinite-lived intangible assets is calculated at the market level as prescribed by ASC 350-30-35, and it is assumed that rather
than acquiring indefinite-lived intangible assets as a part of a going concern business, the buyer hypothetically develops indefinite-lived intangible assets and builds a new
operation with similar attributes from scratch. Thus, the buyer incurs start-up costs during the build-up phase that are normally associated with going concern value. Initial
capital costs are deducted from the discounted cash flow model to calculate the value that is directly attributable to the indefinite-lived intangible assets. Our key assumptions
using the direct valuation method are market revenue growth rates, market share, profit margin, duration and profile of the build-up period, estimated start-up capital costs and
losses incurred during the build-up period, the risk-adjusted discount rate and terminal values. This data is populated using industry-normalized information representing an
average asset within a market.
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Due to an increase in the discount rate, we tested our indefinite-lived billboard permits for impairment as of March 31, 2021, resulting in an impairment charge of
$119.0 million across several markets in our Americas segment. The impairment was primarily driven by an increase in the discount rate and reductions in projected cash flows
related to the expected negative financial statement impacts from COVID-19. In determining the fair value of our billboard permits as of March 31, 2021, the following key
assumptions were used:

• Industry revenue growth forecasts used for the initial four-year period, which varied by market, started with the trailing twelve month forecast period ending March 31,
2022, and annual revenue growth on average of 4.9% was assumed from year two to year four, factoring in recovery from the impacts related to COVID-19;

• Revenue growth beyond the initial four-year period was assumed to be 3.0%;

• Revenue was grown over a build-up period, reaching maturity by the second year;

• Operating margins gradually climb to the industry average margin (as high as 47.4%, depending on market size) by the third year; and

• Discount rate was assumed to be 10.5%.

While we believe we have made reasonable estimates and utilized appropriate assumptions to calculate the fair value of our indefinite-lived intangible assets, it is
possible that a material change could occur. If future results are not consistent with our assumptions and estimates, we may be exposed to impairment charges in the future. As
of March 31, 2021, markets with billboard permit fair values exceeding carrying amounts by 30% or less represented $124.1 million of the total fair value of billboard permits.
These permits had fair values exceeding carrying amounts by $22.4 million in total. The fair value of billboard permits impaired during the three months ended March 31, 2021
was $191.9 million.

The following table shows the decrease in the fair value of our indefinite-lived intangible assets as of March 31, 2021 that would result from decreases of 100 basis
points in our discrete and terminal period revenue growth rate and profit margin assumptions and an increase of 100 basis points in our discount rate assumption:

(In thousands) Revenue growth rate Profit margin Discount rate
Decrease in fair value of: (100 basis point decrease) (100 basis point decrease) (100 basis point increase)

Billboard permits $ (323,500) $ (88,400) $ (331,900)

 The change in each assumption as of March 31, 2021 would result in additional impairment of $74.9 million, $18.4 million and $77.8 million, respectively.

NEW ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

For a description of the expected impact of newly issued but not yet adopted accounting pronouncements on our financial position and results of operations, refer to
Note 1 to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements located in Item 1 of Part I of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

Cautionary Statement Concerning Forward-Looking Statements

This report contains various forward-looking statements which represent our expectations or beliefs concerning future events, including, without limitation, our future
operating and financial performance, our restructuring plans, our ability to comply with the covenants in the agreements governing our indebtedness, and the availability of
capital and the terms thereof. Statements expressing expectations and projections with respect to future matters are forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Private
Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995, which provides a safe harbor for forward-looking statements made by us or on our behalf. We caution that these forward-looking
statements involve a number of risks and uncertainties and are subject to many variables that could impact our future performance. These statements are made on the basis of
management’s views and assumptions, as of the time the statements are made, regarding future events and performance. There can be no assurance, however, that
management’s expectations will necessarily come to pass. Actual future events and performance may differ materially from the expectations reflected in our forward-looking
statements. We do not intend, nor do we undertake any duty, to update any forward-looking statements.

A wide range of factors could materially affect future developments and performance, including, but not limited to:

• the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on our operations and on general economic conditions;

• risks associated with weak or uncertain global economic conditions and their impact on the level of expenditures on advertising;

• our ability to service our debt obligations and to fund our operations and capital expenditures;

1 2 3

1, 2, 3
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• the impact of our substantial indebtedness, including the effect of our leverage on our financial position and earnings;

• industry conditions, including competition;

• our ability to obtain and renew key contracts with municipalities, transit authorities and private landlords;

• technological changes and innovations;

• shifts in population and other demographics;

• fluctuations in operating costs;

• changes in labor conditions and management;

• regulations and consumer concerns regarding privacy and data protection;

• a breach of our information security measures;

• legislative or regulatory requirements;

• restrictions on out-of-home advertising of certain products;

• our ability to execute restructuring plans;

• the impact of future dispositions, acquisitions and other strategic transactions;

• third-party claims of intellectual property infringement, misappropriation or other violation against us or our suppliers;

• risks of doing business in foreign countries;

• fluctuations in exchange rates and currency values;

• effects of Brexit on our business;

• volatility of our stock price;

• the effect of analyst or credit ratings downgrades;

• our ability to continue to comply with the applicable listing standards of the New York Stock Exchange (“NYSE”);

• the ability of our subsidiaries to dividend or distribute funds to us in order for us to repay our debts;

• the restrictions contained in the agreements governing our indebtedness limiting our flexibility in operating our business;

• uncertainty relating to the LIBOR calculation process and potential phasing out of LIBOR;

• the risk that our historical financial information is not necessarily representative of the results we would have achieved as an independent public company and may not
be a reliable indicator of future results;

• the risk that indemnities from iHeartMedia will not be sufficient to insure us against the full amount of certain liabilities;

• our dependence on our management team and other key individuals; and

• certain other factors set forth in our other filings with the SEC.

This list of factors that may affect future performance and the accuracy of forward-looking statements is illustrative and is not intended to be exhaustive. Accordingly,
all forward-looking statements should be evaluated with the understanding of their inherent uncertainty.

ITEM 3.  QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

We are exposed to market risks arising from changes in market rates and prices, including movements in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and inflation.

Foreign Currency Exchange Rate Risk

We have operations in America, Europe and Latin America, and foreign operations are measured in their local currencies. As a result, our financial results could be
affected by factors such as changes in foreign currency exchange rates or weak economic conditions in the foreign markets in which we have operations. Changes in economic
or political conditions in any of the foreign countries in which we operate could result in exchange rate movement, new currency or exchange controls or other currency
restrictions being imposed.
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Our foreign operations reported net losses of $100.5 million for the three months ended March 31, 2021. We estimate that a 10% increase in the value of the
U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies would have decreased our net losses for the three months ended March 31, 2021 by $10.1 million, and a 10% decrease in the value of
the U.S. dollar relative to foreign currencies would have increased our net losses for the three months ended March 31, 2021 by a corresponding amount. This analysis does not
consider the implications that such currency fluctuations could have on the overall economic activity that could exist in such an environment in the U.S. or the foreign countries
or on the results of operations of these foreign entities.

Interest Rate Risk

A portion of our long-term debt bears interest at variable rates; as a result, our financial results are affected by changes in interest rates. As of March 31, 2021, 37% of
our aggregate principal amount of long-term debt bore interest at floating rates. Assuming the current level of borrowings and a 50% increase in LIBOR, it is estimated that our
interest expense for three months ended March 31, 2021 would have increased by $0.6 million.

In the event of an adverse change in interest rates, management may take actions to mitigate our exposure. However, due to the uncertainty of the actions that would be
taken and their possible effects, the preceding interest rate sensitivity analysis assumes no such actions. Further, the analysis does not consider the effects of the change in the
level of overall economic activity that could exist in such an environment.

Inflation

Inflation is a factor in the economies in which we do business, and we continue to seek ways to mitigate its effect. Inflation has affected our performance in terms of
higher costs for wages, salaries and equipment. Although the exact impact of inflation is indeterminable, we believe we have offset these higher costs by increasing the effective
advertising rates of most of our out-of-home display faces.

ITEM 4.  CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

As required by Rule 13a-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), under the supervision and with the participation of
management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, we have carried out an evaluation of the effectiveness of the design and operation of our
disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) under the Exchange Act) as of the end of the period covered by this report. Our disclosure controls and
procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that information we are required to disclose in reports that are filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and our Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure and is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the SEC. Based on that evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer
and our Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of March 31, 2021 at the reasonable assurance level.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the quarter ended March 31, 2021 that have materially affected, or are
reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART II – OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1.  LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For information regarding our material pending legal proceedings, refer to Note 5 to our Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements located in Item 1 of Part I of
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

ITEM 1A.  RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors disclosed under Part I, Item 1A “Risk Factors” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2020, except that the risk factor set forth under, “The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively affected and will likely continue to negatively affect our business,
operating results, financial condition and prospects” is updated and replaced as follows:

The COVID-19 pandemic has negatively affected and will likely continue to negatively affect our business, operating results, financial condition and prospects.

On March 11, 2020, the COVID-19 outbreak was characterized as a pandemic by the World Health Organization. In response to the pandemic, governments around the
world implemented numerous measures to try to contain the virus, such as travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, work-from-home orders and shutdowns. These measures
have impacted and will continue to impact our workforce and operations, the behavior of our advertising customers and of consumers, and the operations of our suppliers. Our
business, along with the global economy, has been adversely affected by these measures, which have resulted in significant reductions in time spent out of home by consumers,
reductions in advertising and consumer spending, volatile economic conditions and business disruptions across markets globally.
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We have experienced and are continuing to experience significantly reduced advertising spend, which has and could continue to materially adversely impact our
business, results of operations and overall financial performance in future periods and could result in future impairments. During the three months ended March 31, 2021, we
continued to see mobility levels and revenues remain significantly below pre-COVID-19 levels throughout our business, including in our Americas segment, where our transit
business was the most significantly impacted, and in our Europe segment, where an increase in reported daily cases and hospitalizations resulted in the reinstatement of mobility
restrictions in certain countries and created significant volatility in customer booking activity. Additionally, impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic could have the effect of
heightening many of the other risks described in the “Risk Factors” section in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Although several COVID-19 vaccines are currently being widely administered in both the U.S. and Europe, the duration and severity of the effects of the pandemic
continue to evolve and remain unknown and may be impacted by various factors, including the speed of COVID-19 vaccine programs, rates of infection from new COVID-19
variants, and actions taken throughout the world, including in our markets, to contain the coronavirus or manage its impact. The severity, magnitude and duration of COVID-19
is uncertain, evolving, hard to predict and depends on events beyond our knowledge or control. As such, we might not be able to predict or respond to all impacts on a timely
basis to prevent near- or long-term adverse impacts on our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash flows, which may be material.

ITEM 2.  UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The following table sets forth our purchases of shares of our common stock made during the quarter ended March 31, 2021:

Period
Total Number of

Shares Purchased
Average Price

Paid per Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as Part of Publicly

Announced Plans or
Programs

Maximum Number of Shares
that May Yet Be Purchased

Under the Plans or Programs
January 1 through January 31 — $ — — — 
February 1 through February 28 4,191 $ 2.03 — — 
March 1 through March 31 — $ — — — 

Total 4,191 $ 2.03 — — 

(1) The shares indicated consist of shares of our common stock tendered by employees to us during the three months ended March 31, 2021 to satisfy the employees’ tax withholding
obligations in connection with the vesting and release of restricted shares, which are repurchased by us based on their fair market value on the date the relevant transaction occurs.

ITEM 3.  DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4.  MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

ITEM 5.  OTHER INFORMATION

On May 5, 2021, the Company and the loan parties thereto entered into the Second Amendment (the “Second Amendment”) to the Company’s credit agreement, dated
as of August 23, 2019 (the “Credit Agreement”), among the Company, the several lenders from time to time party thereto and Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as
Administrative Agent and Collateral Agent. The Credit Agreement had been previously amended by the First Amendment, dated as of June 12, 2020 (the “First Amendment”).
The Credit Agreement, as amended, governs the Company’s Revolving Credit Facility and term loan.

The Credit Agreement contains a springing financial covenant, which requires compliance with a first lien leverage ratio of 7.60 to 1.00 applicable to the Revolving
Credit Facility with a stepdown to 7.10 to 1.00 starting after a certain reporting period. Pursuant to the First Amendment, the springing financial covenant was suspended
through June 30, 2021 and the stepdown was delayed until March 31, 2022. The Second Amendment further extends the suspension of the springing financial covenant through
December 31, 2021 and further delays the stepdown until September 30, 2022. In accordance with the Credit Agreement, as amended by the First Amendment, the suspension
period will continue to end early upon the occurrence of certain specified events set forth in the Credit Agreement.

In addition, under the Credit Agreement, as amended by the First Amendment, the Company was required to maintain minimum cash on hand and availability under
the Company’s receivables-based credit facility and Revolving Credit Facility of $150 million for all reporting periods through September 30, 2021. The Second Amendment
extends the requirement for all reporting periods through March 31, 2022.

The remaining terms of the Credit Agreement, as amended by the First Amendment, have not been modified.

(1) (1)
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The foregoing descriptions of the Second Amendment, the Credit Agreement and the First Amendment do not purport to be complete, and are qualified in their entirety
by reference to the full text of the Second Amendment, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and by reference to the full text of the
Credit Agreement, a copy of which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on August 23, 2019, and the full text of the First Amendment, a
copy of which is filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on June 15, 2020, each of which is incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 6.  EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Number Description
4.1 Indenture dated as of February 17, 2021, among Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. as the Issuer, each of the guarantors party thereto, and

U.S. Bank National Association as Trustee, governing the 7.750% Senior Notes due 2028 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to Clear
Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2021).

4.2 Form of 7.750% Senior Notes due 2028 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit A to Exhibit 4.1 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s
Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 17, 2021)

10.1* Second Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of May 5, 2021, among the Company, the other loan parties thereto and Deutsche Bank AG
New York Branch, as administrative agent

10.2 Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. 2012 Second Amended and Restated Equity Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Appendix A to
the Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc. definitive proxy statement on Schedule 14A for its 2021 Annual Meeting of Stockholders filed on
March 17, 2021).

22 List of Subsidiary Guarantors (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 22 to Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.’s Annual Report on Form 10-K
filed on February 25, 2021).

31.1* Certification Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

31.2* Certification Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) and 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

32.1** Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2** Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS* XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document.
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document. 
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document. 
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document.
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document.
104 Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as inline XBRL).

__________________
*    Filed herewith.
**    Furnished herewith.

Signatures
 

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto
duly authorized.

 

CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC.

May 10, 2021  /s/ JASON A. DILGER    
Jason A. Dilger
Chief Accounting Officer
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Exhibit 10.1

EXECUTION VERSION

SECOND AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

        SECOND AMENDMENT, dated as of May 5, 2021 (this “Agreement”), to the Credit Agreement, dated as of August 23, 2019, among Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings,
Inc. (the “Borrower”), the several lenders from time to time party thereto (collectively, the “Lenders”), Deutsche Bank AG New York Branch, as Administrative Agent and
Collateral Agent and the other parties party thereto (as amended by the First Amendment to Credit Agreement, dated as of June 12, 2020, and as may hereafter be amended,
restated, amended and restated, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time, the “Credit Agreement”). Capitalized terms used herein and not otherwise defined herein
shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Credit Agreement.

        WHEREAS, the Borrower has requested that the Required Revolving Credit Lenders consent to the amendments to the Credit Agreement set forth in Section 1 of this
Agreement.

        NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, and in reliance on the representations, warranties
and covenants herein contained, the parties hereto agree as follows:

SECTION 1. Amendments to Credit Agreement. Subject to all of the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement and the Credit Agreement, on and
effective as of the Second Amendment Effective Date (as defined below), the Credit Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

1.1 The definition of “Liquidity Testing Period” in Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Liquidity Testing Period” means the period commencing on the first date of the Relief Period and ending on the date of delivery of the Compliance Certificate
with respect to the period ended March 31, 2022.

1.2 The definition of “Step-Down Date” in Section 1.01 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:

“Step-Down Date” means September 30, 2022; provided that if a Specified Event shall have occurred, the Step-Down Date shall be the later of (x) June 30,
2021 and (y) the last day of the fiscal quarter ended after the date on which such Specified Event shall have occurred.

1.3 Section 7.09(b) of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as follows:

(b)     Liquidity. (i) Except with the written consent of the Required Revolving Credit Lenders, the Borrower will not permit Liquidity as of the last day of any
calendar month ending during the Liquidity Testing Period to be less than $150,000,000 and (ii) the Borrower shall deliver to the Administrative Agent (x) within fifteen (15)
calendar days of the end of each calendar month ending during the Liquidity Testing Period, a certificate in the form of Exhibit N hereto (the “Minimum Liquidity Certificate”),
executed by a Responsible Officer of the Borrower, setting forth reasonably detailed calculations demonstrating Liquidity as of the last day of such calendar month and
compliance with the Liquidity Covenant and (y) within twenty-two (22) calendar days of the end of each calendar month ending during the Liquidity Testing Period, a thirteen-
week liquidity forecast in a form agreed between the Administrative Agent and the Borrower; provided that, if, after the Borrower delivers any Minimum Liquidity Certificate to
the Administrative Agent demonstrating Liquidity of less than $250,000,000, then until the Borrower delivers a Minimum Liquidity Certificate demonstrating Liquidity of at
least $250,000,000, the Borrower shall, at the reasonable request of the Administrative Agent, furnish to the Administrative Agent (on not more than a weekly basis) a
certificate setting forth Liquidity as determined by the Borrower in its reasonable judgment.

    



1.4 The definition of “Relief Period Termination Date” in Section 7.09 of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended and restated in its entirety as
follows:

“Relief Period Termination Date” means the earlier of (i) the last day of the fiscal quarter ending on or about March 31, 2022 and (ii) the date of occurrence of
any Specified Event.

SECTION 2. Conditions to Effectiveness. This Agreement shall become effective upon the first date on which each of the following conditions
precedent shall have been satisfied (or waived) (such date, the “Second Amendment Effective Date”):

2.1 The Administrative Agent (or its counsel) shall have received from (i) the Borrower and (ii) the Revolving Credit Lenders that collectively constitute
the Required Revolving Credit Lenders (x) a counterpart of this Agreement signed on behalf of such party or (y) written evidence satisfactory to the Administrative Agent
(which may include electronic transmission of a signed signature page of this Agreement) that such party has signed a counterpart of this Agreement.

2.2 The Borrower shall have paid to the Administrative Agent all expenses due and payable on or prior to the Second Amendment Effective Date
(including in Section 4 hereof) to the extent invoiced at least three (3) Business Days prior to the Second Amendment Effective Date (or such shorter period reasonably agreed
by the Borrower).

2.3 The Administrative Agent shall have received a certificate from a Responsible Officer of the Borrower certifying that the representations and
warranties set forth in (x) Section 3 of this Agreement and (y) Article V of the Credit Agreement and in the other Loan Documents are, in each case, true and correct in all
material respects (other than any such representation and warranty that is already qualified by materiality or “Material Adverse Effect” in the text thereof, in which case such
representation and warranty shall be true in all respects) on and as of the Second Amendment Effective Date, except to the extent such representations and warranties
specifically relate to an earlier date, in which case such representations and warranties are true and correct in all material respects on and as of such earlier date.

2.4 At the time of and immediately after giving effect to this Agreement, no Default or Event of Default shall exist or result therefrom.

SECTION 3. Representations and Warranties. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants to each Consenting Lender and the Administrative Agent
that (a) the Borrower has all requisite power and authority to execute, deliver and perform its obligations under this Agreement, (b) the execution, delivery and performance by
the Borrower of this Agreement (1) are within the Borrower’s corporate or other powers, (2) have been duly authorized by all necessary corporate or other organizational action
and (3) do not contravene the terms of the Borrower’s organizational documents, (c) this Agreement has been duly executed and delivered by the Borrower and (d) this
Agreement constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Borrower, enforceable against the Borrower in accordance with its terms, except as such enforceability may
be limited by Debtor Relief Laws and by general principles of equity.

SECTION 4. Costs and Expenses. The Borrower acknowledges and agrees that its payment obligations set forth in Section 10.04 of the Credit
Agreement include the reasonable and documented out-of-pocket costs and expenses incurred by the Administrative Agent in connection with the preparation, execution and
delivery of this Agreement and any other documentation contemplated hereby, including, but not limited to, the reasonable fees and disbursements of Davis Polk & Wardwell
LLP, counsel to the Administrative Agent.
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SECTION 5. Ratification. The Credit Agreement, as amended by this Agreement, and the other Loan Documents remain in full force and effect and are
hereby ratified and affirmed. This Agreement shall be limited precisely as written and, except as expressly provided herein, shall not be deemed (i) to be a consent granted
pursuant to, or a waiver, modification or forbearance of, any term or condition of the Credit Agreement, any other Loan Document or any of the instruments or agreements
referred to in any thereof or a waiver of any Default or Event of Default, whether or not known to the Administrative Agent or any of the Lenders, or (ii) to prejudice any right
or remedy which the Administrative Agent or any of the Lenders may now have or have in the future against any Person under or in connection with the Credit Agreement, any
of the instruments or agreements referred to therein or any of the transactions contemplated thereby.

SECTION 6. Reaffirmation of the Loan Parties. Each Loan Party party hereto hereby consents to the amendment of the Credit Agreement effected
hereby and confirms and agrees that, notwithstanding the effectiveness of this Agreement, each Loan Document to which such Loan Party is a party is, and the obligations of
such Loan Party contained in the Credit Agreement, this Agreement or in any other Loan Document to which it is a party are, and shall continue to be, in full force and effect
and are hereby ratified and confirmed in all respects, in each case as amended by this Agreement. For greater certainty and without limiting the foregoing, each Loan Party party
hereto hereby confirms that the existing guarantees and/or security interests granted by such Loan Party in favor of the Administrative Agent for the benefit of the Secured
Parties pursuant to the Loan Documents in the Collateral described therein shall continue to secure the obligations of the Loan Parties under the Credit Agreement and the other
Loan Documents as and to the extent provided in the Loan Documents.

SECTION 7. Modifications. Neither this Agreement, nor any provision hereof, may be waived, amended or modified except pursuant to an agreement or
agreements in writing entered into by the parties hereto.

SECTION 8. References. Each reference in the Credit Agreement to “this Agreement,” “hereunder,” “hereof,” “herein,” or words of like import, and
each reference in each other Loan Document (and the other documents and instruments delivered pursuant to or in connection therewith) to the “Credit Agreement”,
“thereunder”, “thereof”, “therein” or words of like import, shall mean and be a reference to the Credit Agreement as modified hereby and as each may in the future be amended,
restated, supplemented or modified from time to time. This Agreement shall constitute a “Loan Document” for purposes of the Credit Agreement and each other Loan
Document.

SECTION 9. Counterparts. This Agreement may be executed by the parties hereto individually or in combination, in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute one and the same agreement. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page by telecopier or electronic mail
(in a .pdf format) shall be effective as delivery of a manually executed counterpart. The words “execution,” “signed,” “signature,” and words of like import in this Agreement
shall be deemed to include electronic signatures or electronic records, each of which shall be of the same legal effect, validity or enforceability as a manually executed signature
or the use of a paper-based recordkeeping system, as the case may be, to the extent and as provided for in any applicable law, including the Federal Electronic Signatures in
Global and National Commerce Act, the New York State Electronic Signatures and Records Act, or any other similar state laws based on the Uniform Electronic Transactions
Act.

SECTION 10. Successors and Assigns. The provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the parties hereto and their
respective successors and assigns.

SECTION 11. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held invalid or unenforceable in whole or in part in any jurisdiction, such
provision shall, as to such jurisdiction, be ineffective to the extent of such invalidity or enforceability without in any manner affecting the validity or enforceability of such
provision in any other jurisdiction or the remaining provisions of this Agreement in any jurisdiction.
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SECTION 12. Governing Law. THIS AGREEMENT AND EACH OTHER LOAN DOCUMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED
IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK (EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE EXPRESSLY PROVIDED HEREIN OR THEREIN).

SECTION 13. Headings. Section headings in this Agreement are included for convenience of reference only and are not to affect the construction of, or to
be taken into consideration in interpreting, this Agreement.

[The remainder of this page left blank intentionally]
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed by their respective authorized officers as of the day and year first above
written.

CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS, INC.,
as Borrower

By: /s/ Brian D. Coleman    
Name: Brian D. Coleman

    Title: Chief Financial Officer

For purposes of Section 6, only:

CLEAR CHANNEL ADSHEL, INC.
CLEAR CHANNEL ELECTRICAL SERVICES, LLC
CLEAR CHANNEL IP, LLC
CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR HOLDINGS
COMPANY CANADA
CLEAR CHANNEL OUTDOOR, LLC
CLEAR CHANNEL WORLDWIDE HOLDINGS, INC.
EXCEPTIONAL OUTDOOR, INC.
GET OUTDOORS FLORIDA, LLC
IN - TER - SPACE SERVICES, INC.
OUTDOOR MANAGEMENT SERVICES, INC.
UNIVERSAL OUTDOOR, INC.
1567 MEDIA LLC
CCOI HOLDCO III, LLC
CCOI HOLDCO PARENT I, LLC
CCOI HOLDCO PARENT II, LLC
CLEAR CHANNEL METRA, LLC
CLEAR CHANNEL SPECTACOLOR, LLC

By: /s/ Brian D. Coleman    
Name: Brian D. Coleman

    Title: Chief Financial Officer
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DEUTSCHE BANK AG NEW YORK BRANCH,
as Administrative Agent and a Revolving Credit Lender

By: /s/ Phil Tancorra    
Name: Philip Tancorra

    Title: Vice President

By: /s/ Yumi Okabe    
Name: Yumi Okabe

    Title: Vice President
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Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc.
as a Revolving Credit Lender
By:  /s/ Roberto Ellinghaus
Name:  Roberto Ellinghaus
Title:  Vice President

If a second signature is necessary:

By:   
Name:  
Title:  

 
JPMORGAN CHASE BANK, N.A.,
as a Revolving Credit Lender

By:  /s/ Sandeep Parihar
Name:  Sandeep Parihar
Title:  Executive Director

 
BARCLAYS BANK PLC,
as a Revolving Credit Lender

By:  /s/ Sean Duggan
Name:  Sean Duggan
Title:  Vice President

 
Goldman Sachs Lending Partners LLC,
as a Revolving Credit Lender

By:  /s/ Dan Martis
Name:  Dan Martis
Title:  Authorized Signatory
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WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.,
as a Revolving Credit Lender

By:  /s/ Teddy Koch
Name:  Teddy Koch
Title:  Managing Director
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EXHIBIT 31.1 – CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
I, C. William Eccleshare, certify that:

1.    I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.;

2.    Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.    Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.    The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5.    The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)   All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)   Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date:  May 10, 2021
 
 

/s/ C. WILLIAM ECCLESHARE
C. William Eccleshare
Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 31.2 – CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO RULES 13A-14(A) AND 15D-14(A) UNDER THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934, AS ADOPTED
PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002
 
I, Brian D. Coleman, certify that:

1.     I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Clear Channel Outdoor Holdings, Inc.;

2.      Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the statements made, in
light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3.      Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4.     The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a)  Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that material
information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

(b)   Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

(c)   Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant's disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure
controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

(d)   Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant's internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the
registrant's fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the registrant's internal
control over financial reporting; and

5.    The registrant's other certifying officer(s) and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the registrant's auditors
and the audit committee of the registrant's board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(a)     All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant's ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

(b)    Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant's internal control over financial
reporting.

Date:  May 10, 2021
 
  

/s/ BRIAN D. COLEMAN
Brian D. Coleman
Chief Financial Officer



EXHIBIT 32.1 – CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002
 

This certification is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and accompanies the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-Q”) of Clear Channel Outdoor
Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”). The undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge, the Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.
  

Dated:  May 10, 2021
 
 

By: /s/ C. WILLIAM ECCLESHARE
Name: C. William Eccleshare
Title: Chief Executive Officer



EXHIBIT 32.2 – CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF
2002

 
This certification is provided pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, and accompanies the Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended March 31, 2021 as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “Form 10-Q”) of Clear Channel Outdoor
Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”). The undersigned hereby certifies that to his knowledge, the Form 10-Q fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d)
of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 and that the information contained in the Form 10-Q fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of
operations of the Company.

 
Dated:  May 10, 2021
 

By: /s/ BRIAN D. COLEMAN
Name: Brian D. Coleman
Title: Chief Financial Officer


